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NOTE:  NEW DATE FOR PROPOSALS IS AUGUST 31, 2012, 5 PM EASTERN TIME. 

 

1. Question:  Will the 50 trainees include all categories of stakeholders (scientists, patient 
advocates, clinicians, etc.)? 

Answer:  Yes. This training program is for all non-scientist reviewers.  Scientist reviewer training 
will occur through a separate process unrelated to this RFP.    

2. Question:  If the 50 trainees are only patient advocates, will there be training for the other 
stakeholders? 

 
Answer:  The contractor will be expected to prepare curriculum for and deliver training to all of 
the stakeholders identified in the RFP. PCORI will conduct scientist reviewer training, separately. 

3. Question:  Who chooses the 50 participants? 
 
Answer:  PCORI. 

4. Question:  Will the contractor have input into the selection process? 
 

Answer:  We expect that the Contractor will submit formal selection process recommendations in 
their Process Improvement Plan (that could be used during future recruitment cycles). 

5. Question:  At what point will the decision be made whether or not to continue the contract 
beyond the 4-month obligation?  Before the end of the 4 months?  Directly afterwards? 

 
Answer:   The decision to continue the contract will be made and based on the Contractor’s 
performance.   The contract could be extended before the end of the 4-month period; afterwards; 
or not at all.   Successful contract performance will be the determining factor based on the quality 
measurements and QASP. 

6. Question:  Who pays for the trainees to travel to the training site? 
 
Answer:   PCORI. 
  

7. Question:  Will the in-person training take place the day previous to the grant review session? 
 
Answer:  The training will take place the morning of the first grant review session (merit review 
session). Please note that the exact dates and times are projected.  PCORI will provide exact 
dates and times with the awarded Contractor. 

8. Question:  Will the grant reviews take place at PCORI offices? 
 

Answer:  The first grant review session (merit review session) will take place at PCORI or a 
Washington, DC venue selected - and paid for - by PCORI. 

9. Question:  Must the tabulation of evaluations be completed before the end of the 4-month 
period? 

 
Answer:   Yes - all deliverables are due by the end of the base contract period. Please refer to 
the RFP for a schedule of due dates.   

10. Question:  Is the federally negotiated indirect rate acceptable? 
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Answer:   All proposals should include justification for proposed rates.  All rates and fees, 
including federally negotiated indirect cost rates, should be substantiated.  PCORI reserves the 
right to request additional documentation (e.g., independently audited financial statements, audit 
reports, etc.).  Unsubstantiated rates and fees will not be allowed.  

11. Question:  Will it be allowable for the contractor to publish their experience?  Are there 
authorship rules concerning this? 
 
Answer:   PCORI reserves the rights to all research, training, and curriculum.  Permission must 
be received, by PCORI, prior to any release. 
 

12. Question:  Does the RFP encompass developing the merit review process as well as training 
and evaluation? 

  
The RFP indicates that the PM is responsible for 

  
"Formulating a communications strategy and plan to facilitate the merit review training for the 
variety of stakeholders involved in the event". 
 
The RFP also says one of the deliverables is:  
  
Developing credible merit review criteria (e.g., NIH-based criteria) that address applicant 
selection, scoring factors, and knowledge enhancement.  
  
This seems to imply merit review criteria and scoring factors related to the overall merit review. 
 
Answer:    The merit review criteria and processes to be used in this project already have been 
developed by the PCORI grants management team (Note: the reviewer selection criteria are 
based on NIH guidelines – we apologize for the lack of clarity in the original posting), but per the 
RFP, the Contractor will be training the stakeholders based on the curriculum outline and final 
evaluation and will develop credible merit reviewer criteria.  There is also a potential to enhance 
it.  We expect that the Contractor selected will create a customized curriculum; conduct two 
separate webinars; deliver a hands-on training; and compile a series of recommendations (in a 
Process Improvement Plan) that may be applied during future merit reviewer training efforts. 

The first part of your question (communications strategy) references the need to improve upon 
the way PCORI communicates with reviewers: from recruitment through assignment. 

The second part of your question (merit review criteria) references the need to (1) ensure that the 
current PCORI reviewer selection criteria are clearly conveyed in the curriculum, and (2) enhance 
or improve upon the current criteria by making formal recommendations in the Process 
Improvement Plan. 

13. Question:  Is the RFP directed at training patient stakeholders or all reviewers (i.e., all 
stakeholders) who participate in the merit review? 

Answer:  Consistent with PCORI’s desire to include patients and other stakeholders in its work, 
the RFP is directed at training those non-scientist stakeholder reviewers listed above in Question 
1 and delineated in the RFP. 

 
14. Question:  If we partner in a meaningful way with 3 experienced groups who have done this sort 

of thing before, is it correct that the 3 subcontracts each cannot exceed $600 per day?  I am not 
sure that this makes sense if we want to assemble the best possible team and the experienced 
people and organizations are independent of the PI's organization. 
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Answer:  As noted in the “Other Staff/Subcontractors” section of the RFP, “It is imperative that 
the Contractor demonstrate how it will identify, solicit, formally engage, and translate the input 
from patients and/or patient-centered organizations. It is expected that the patients and/or patient-
centered organizations will be appropriately compensated at a rate of $100.00/hr,  up to 
$600.00/day, through subcontracts or directly through the contracting organization, with the costs 
built into the cost proposal.” 

Accordingly, PCORI is seeking a proposal that will engage patients at a rate of $100 per hour, per 
patient. If patient-centered organizations are engaged, it is expected that they will follow this 
compensation model and compensate the patients involved at the $100 per hour, per patient rate. 

PCORI realizes the stakeholders may be a diverse mix of understanding and backgrounds.  
Keeping in mind that we are asking individuals to participate in a session and take them 
potentially away from their normal working duties, each individual will be compensated on a case-
by-case basis.  The pricing is on a per person basis, not on a per subcontract basis. 

15. Question:  Can the subcontracting organization include indirect costs?  If yes, what if the total 
then exceeds $600 per day? 
 
Answer:  Yes. However, all proposed costs and fees must be fully justified. If your organization 
has a federally approved indirect cost (F&A) rate agreement, it should be referenced in the 
proposed budget. Likewise, all overhead, G&A, and fees must comply with your organization’s 
previously established policies. PCORI reserves the right to request independently audited 
financial statements and/or audit reports to verify the costs, fees, and rates included in the 
proposal. As noted in the proposal evaluation factors, the technical approach will receive the 
greatest consideration. Legitimate (and substantiated) fees are not related to patient 
compensation and are acceptable.  

16. Question:  I would like to request a copy of the rules and regulations mentioned in the proposal 
so our contracts officer can confirm that we can adhere to them. 
 
Answer:   PCORI will provide rules and regulations to successful Contractor.  PCORI follows 
federal contracting regulations and will provide these to the Contractor during contract 
negotiations and final contract.  All regulations are required to be flowed down to any 
subcontractor.   

 
17. Question:  Secondly, I wanted to clarify page 8 of the proposal (other Staff/Subcontractors):  It 

states that we can compensate at a rate of $100 an hour up to $600, does this mean we are 
limited to paying subcontracts $600 per day for their collaboration? 

 
Answer:  No. PCORI has not established subcontracting limits. The RFP provided guidelines to 
ensure that the patients involved in your proposal are appropriately compensated ($100 per hour, 
per patient, up to $600 per day). Please refer to question #14 and #15 for more details. 

18. Question:  The RFP lists a comprehensive set of stakeholders including consumers, clinicians, 
service and equipment providers and researchers/academics.  In other places we note that you 
list patients, caregivers and other stakeholders.  Is the intention to represent all stakeholder 
categories as part of the 50 trainees or patients only? If a subset of the “other stakeholders,” 
which groups does this include? 
 
Answer:  See the answer to Question #1, listed above. 
 

19. Question:  Do you want the budget presented in 2 parts – the first 4 months and then the next 8, 
assuming the one year option?  If you want the 2 part option, could you provide an idea of what 
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will be done in the second 8 months? Will there be new reviewers and additional trainings or 
follow up/ongoing training with the existing cohort? 
 
Answer:  PCORI need Cost proposals for the base and the option year.  Your Cost proposal 
(budget) should be submitted separate from the Technical proposal. As noted in Question #5, 
PCORI will notify the Contractor if a new proposal or quote is needed, based on successful 
performance 
 
Yes – there will be new reviewers, trainings, and follow up. There are three funding cycles per 
year with corresponding calls for applications for stakeholder merit reviewers.  The application, 
communication, vetting, training and evaluation processes will continue throughout the funding 
cycles. 
 

20. Question:  What is the purpose of the training, beyond ensuring inclusiveness? 

 Are you aiming for consistent voting, as an indicator that all reviewers are scoring 
applications the same way?  Or is the goal of including all stakeholders to insure that a 
diverse set of views are considered when judging proposals so that the merit of the proposal 
is considered from all sides, a 360° look? 

 Once the 360° has been attained, is the reference standard identification of high quality 
proposals that are patient-centered? 

 
Answer:   The purpose of the training is to educate non-scientist reviewers in (1) patient-centered 
outcomes research, and (2) the processes associated with effective merit reviews. The goal of 
including stakeholders in the merit review process is to assure that research is relevant and 
meaningful to patients, caregivers and the broader healthcare community.  PCORI is requesting a 
technical solution that would allow for these two points to be conveyed, and will consider all 
methods that the Contractor proposes in their response. 
 
Please reference the Mission and Vision of PCORI: 

Mission: The Patient-Centered Outcomes Research Institute (PCORI) helps people make 
informed health care decisions, and improves health care delivery and outcomes, by producing 
and promoting high integrity, evidence-based information that comes from research guided by 
patients, caregivers and the broader health care community. 

Vision:  Patients and the public have the information they need to make decisions that reflect their 
desired health outcomes. 

21. Question:  We have seen on your website the definition of what patient-centered outcomes 
research (PCOR) does, but this does not necessarily define what PCOR is.  For example, one 
could interpret from the four points in the definition that PCOR is any research that provides 
information to support any of the four points or, alternatively, that there might be some minimum 
threshold within or across points. Could you clarify what PCOR is? 
 
Answer:  Patient-Centered Outcomes Research (PCOR) helps people make informed health 
care decisions and allows their voice to be heard in assessing the value of health care options. 
This research answers patient-focused questions: 

 “Given my personal characteristics, conditions and preferences, what should I expect will 
happen to me?”  

 “What are my options and what are the benefits and harms of those options?”  
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 “What can I do to improve the outcomes that are most important to me?”  

 “How can the health care system improve my chances of achieving the outcomes I 

 prefer?” 

 
22. Question:  What is a “Quality Service survey form”? 

 
Answer:  A “Quality Service survey form” is a recommended tool that will facilitate current and 
relevant communication between the Contractor and PCORI. As noted in the RFP, “The 
Contractor should describe and outline its procedures to ensure that the program is successfully 
managed, fully implemented to PCORI’s standards, and able to generate substantive 
recommendations that are meaningful and quantitative.” The selected Contractor must have the 
means to monitor its services and deliverables. By providing a form (a written or electronic tool to 
solicit feedback from the PCORI project team), the Contractor will be able to better adjust its 
efforts during the course of the project. 

 
23. Question:  How do you define “effectiveness of training”?  In other words, what is your gold 

standard for program effectiveness?  Alternatively, are you asking the contractor to define that 
standard, develop the training program in service to stakeholders attaining that standard 
stakeholders, then measure to see if the standard is met? 
 
Answer:  The proposed definition of “effectiveness of training” should be clearly defined in the 
Contractor’s proposal that would relate to relevant past performance and experience, managerial 
expertise, and a sound technical proposal. The exact approach employed could be innovative 
and customized to the Scope of Work in this RFP, or the Contractor could employ proven models 
from other projects. 
 

24. Question:  Is PCORI requesting Option Year pricing and if so, what is the SOW for the 
Option Year referenced in the RFP? 
 
Answer:  Yes, PCORI is requesting both base and option year pricing based on the continuation 
of the SOW through FY2013.   
 

25. Question:  Does PCORI expect the Contractor to pay an honorarium or fee to the 50 trainees for 
participating in the in-person or webinar trainings or reimburse them for any associated travel 
costs? 
 
Answer:  No. PCORI will cover the honorarium and fees associated with the training. 
 

26. Question:  Will PCORI identify/recruit the trainees (webcast and in-person trainings) and 
interviewees (patients and patient care organizations) for curriculum development? 
 
Answer:  PCORI will recruit the stakeholder reviewer trainees; the patient partner (or patient 
organization) is to be determined by contractor. 
  

27. Question:  Has PCORI developed a standard or metric to determine the appropriate number of 
patients/stakeholders from which to gather input for effective curriculum development? 
 
Answer:  PCORI does not have a standard or metric to determine the number of patient partners 
for effective curriculum development. It is expected that the contractor will demonstrate 
meaningful, creative and effective partnership with the patient population in curriculum 
development. 
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28. Question:  Does PCORI have a preferred application (e.g., Adobe Connect, MeetingBridge) for 
the webinars? If so, does PCORI have an account/license? Or, does PCORI expect the 
Contractor to pay the associated fees/ license? 
 
Answer:  PCORI will provide all necessary support, technology and fees for the webinars. 
 

29. Question:  Does PCORI require that the webinars be posted online and is it the Contractor’s 
responsibility to post it online? If so, will the Contractor be responsible for all associated costs 
including 508 compliance costs, hosting costs, etc.? 
 

Answer: PCORI is responsible for all webinar technologies and postings. 
 

30. Question:  Are we correct in assuming that the Subcontracting Plan referenced in the RFP does 
not apply to the subcontracts that the Contractor is expected to enter into with patients and/or 
patient-centered organizations as part of the interview process? If a Subcontracting Plan is 
required for those interviewees, can you please provide the specific goals and expectations 
around the plan itself, the desired format for the plan, if any, and any reporting required in 
connection with it? 
 
Answer: Yes, that is a correct assumption.  PCORI requests a Subcontracting Plan that provides 
a 5% subcontracting goal to one or a combination of the small business types listed in the RFP in 
direct performance of the contract.  The performance of the Subcontracting Plan shall be reported 
at the end of each period of performance (base and option).  The format shall be in supporting 
narrative:  why a subcontractor is selected and what parts of the contract they are performing and 
their overall contribution, the monitoring and/or managing of the subcontractor’s performance, 
and the financial value as it pertains to the labor that the small business would be performing as a 
subcontractor.  The Contractor should submit, with their proposal, the Subcontractor company 
and the labor they intend to have them performing.   
 

31. Question:  Does this application require Letters of Support/Letters of Approval? 
 
Answer:  This is not an application.  This is a request for contract services, and Letters of 
Support or Approval are not required.   
 

32. Question:  Are appendices allowed in addition to the ten pages?  If so, what are the guidelines 
concerning appendices? 
 
Answer:  The Contractor may include relevant appendices to convey their solution and are not 
limited to the number of pages.   

 

 


